
 

 
This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg 

 

 
AGENDA 
 

Committee 
 
 

LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE 
 

Date and Time  
of Meeting 
 

FRIDAY, 8 OCTOBER 2021, 10.00 AM 
 

Venue  
 
 

REMOTE MEETING VIA MS TEAMS 

Membership 
 
 

Councillor Mackie (Chair) 
Councillors Asghar Ali and Jacobsen 
 
 

1   Declarations of Interest   
 
To be made at the start of the agenda item in question, in accordance with the 
Members’ Code of Conduct. 

 
2   Application for a Grant of a Premises Licence - Mood Lounge, City Road  

(Pages 3 - 20) 
 

3   Urgent Items (if any)   
 

 
 
Davina Fiore 
Director Governance & Legal Services 
Date:  Monday, 4 October 2021 
Contact:  Graham Porter,  
02920 873401, g.porter@cardiff.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg 

 

 

This meeting will be recorded for subsequent broadcast on the 
Council’s website. The whole of the meeting will be recorded, except 
where there are confidential or exempt items. A copy of the recording 
will also be retained in accordance with the Council’s data retention 

policy. 
If you make a representation to the meeting you will be deemed to have 

consented to being filmed and/or recorded. 
If you have any queries regarding the recording of this meeting, please 

contact Committee Services on 02920 872020 or 
email Democratic Services 



CARDIFF COUNCIL                        Agenda Item CO.  
CYNGOR CAERDYDD 
 
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE: 8 October 2021 
 
Report of the Head of Regulatory Services 
 
Application for Premises Licence - Grant 
 
Application No: 064590  
Name of Premises: Mood Lounge, 119a-121 City Road, Roath, Cardiff, CF24 3BP 
Ward: Plasnewydd  
 
 
1.  Application 
 
1.1 An application for the Grant of a Premises Licence has been received from Mood Lounge Limited in 

respect of Mood Lounge, 119a-121 City Road, Roath, Cardiff, CF24 3BP. 
 
1.2 The applicant has applied for the following: 
 

(1) In respect of the following licensable activities: 
 
(i) The provision of regulated entertainment in the form of recorded music (indoors). 
(ii) The provision of late night refreshment (indoors). 

 
(2) Description of Premises (as stated by applicant): 

 
“Shisha and juice bar serving food and non alcoholic drinks like smoothies, juices and 
coffees. All on one floor, inside sitting area with open sky windows”. 
 

(3) Unless otherwise indicated the premises may be open to the public during the following hours 
and for any hours consequential to the non-standard timings: 
  
 Monday to Sunday: 12:00 to 02:00 
  

 (4) To provide licensable activities during the following hours: 
 

(i) The provision of regulated entertainment in the form of recorded music (indoors): 
Monday to Sunday: 12:30 to 02:00 
 

(ii) The provision of late night refreshment (indoors): 
Monday to Sunday: 23:00 to 02:00 
 

1.3 A site map showing the premises and a plan of that premises can be found in Appendix A.   
 
 
2. Promotion of Licensing Objectives 

 
2.1 The additional conditions proposed by the applicant to meet the licensing objectives are attached to 

the report and can be found in Appendix B.   
 
 
 
 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



3. Relevant Representations 
 
3.1 A representation has been received from South Wales Police and the proposed conditions have 

been agreed to by the applicant. A copy of the representation and subsequent agreement can be 
found attached as Appendix C. 

 
3.2 A representation has been received from other persons (a local resident). A copy of the 

representation is attached as Appendix D. 
 
 
4. Legal Considerations 
 
4.1 In respect of the application the decision must be taken following consideration of the 

representations received with a view to promoting the licensing objectives, which are: 
 

Prevention of crime and disorder 
Public Safety 
Prevention of Public Nuisance 
Protection of Children from Harm 

 
4.2 In each case the Sub-Committee may make the following determination 
 

a) To grant the application. 
b) To modify the conditions of the licence, by altering, omitting or adding to them, where 

relevant. 
c) Reject the whole or part of the application. 

 
4.3 All decisions taken by the Sub-Committee must (a) be within the legal powers of the Council and its 

Committees; (b) comply with any procedural requirement imposed by law; (c) be undertaken in 
accordance with the procedural requirements imposed by the Council e.g. standing orders and 
financial regulations; (d) be fully and properly informed; (e) be properly motivated; (f) be taken having 
regard to the Council’s fiduciary duty to its taxpayers; and (g) be reasonable and proper in all the 
circumstances. 

 
5. Issues for Discussion 
 
5.1 The application should be determined and the appropriateness of any conditions on the licence 

needs to be discussed. 
 
 
 
Dave Holland          
Regulatory Services        22nd September 2021 

Page 4



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX A 
Site Map & Plan 

 

Page 5



CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

Neuadd y Sir, Glanfa'r Iwerydd
CAERDYDD CF10 4UW
Tel: 029 20872088

County Hall, Atlantic Wharf
CARDIFF CF10 4UW
Tel: 029 20872087

Cyngor Caerdydd

Cardiff Council

Title

Scale: 1:1417
Date: 20/9/2021 at 12:19 PM
Coordinates:
© Crown copyright and database rights
(2014).
This copy is produced specifically to supply
County Council information NO further copies
may be made.

Ordnance Survey 100023376 (2014).

Copyright Cardiff County Council, Licence Number 100023376Copyright Cardiff County Council, Licence Number 100023376

20 m
100 f t

Page 6



Smoking Area

Toilet

Toilet

FOOD PREP AREA

COURTYARD

PROPOSED PLAN

CITY ROAD

A

A
B

B

Entrance

Open to sky

COUNTER

FD FD FD

Side open to

sky

Cycle parking

07772403351

-

cds

Design Services

jopy@aol.com

-

Project Ref No.

Date :

Scale : JP

NZ

Revision Ref.

Approved :

Drawn By :

Drawing No.

t

e

f

w

Drawing Title :-

-

   Cwmffynnon Cottage

                Twyn College

ORIGINAL DRAWING SIZE  = A3

  NP11 3NR

   Newbrige

                      CDS (Newbridge) LTD

(Newbridge Ltd)

DEC 2019

R/O119-121 CITY ROAD, CARDIFF

003

1:100

FRSC-30

COFFEE SHOP

FRSC-30

FRSC-30

H

FRSC-30

H

FRSC-30

STORE

Open to sky

FIRE EXIT CORRIDOR

6876

10506

11485

7161

WALL A

WALL B

WALL C

WALL D

WALL A- 11.4 M

WALL B- 7.1 M

WALL C- 6.8 M

WALL D- 10.5 M

TOTAL LENGTH- 11.4 + 7.1 +6.8 +10.5  = 35.8 M

CEILING HEIGHT =4.2M

TOTAL WALL AREA = 35.8 X4.2 =150.36 M2

WALL C +WALL D = 10.5 +6.8 =17.3 M

TOTAL WALL AREA OPEN TO SKY = 17.3 X 4.2=72.66 M2

TOTAL  WALL AREA OPEN TO SKY IS APPROXIMATELY 50

% OF TOTAL WALL AREA

THESE VENTED AREA WALL SHOULD BE KEPT
OPEN ALL THE TIME. THERE SHALL NOT BE ANY
SHUTTER, DOOR OR WINDOW INSTALLED

P
age 7

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
HEAT DETECTORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
SMOKE DETECTORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
 EMERGENCY EXIT

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
ALL ABOVE LINKED TO MAINS.

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
ESCAPE WINDOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
EW

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
30 MINUTES FIRE RESISTANCE SELF CLOSING DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
 EMERGENCY LIGHTING

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
FIRE DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
FD



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX B 
Operating Schedule  

Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



 
 

APPENDIX C 
South Wales Police Representation & Agreement 

Page 11



1

Barker, Kirstie

From:
Sent: 14 September 2021 08:46
To: Licensing (Licensing Regulatory)  / Trwyddedu (Rheoleiddio Trwyddedu); 

Subject: Police Representations-Mood Lounge 119a-121 City Road.  Cardiff.   
Attachments: Signed Headed Paper-Mood Lounge.pdf; Headed Paper-Mood Lounge 119a-121 

City Road.docx

*** Warning: This email contains a Microsoft Office (Word, Excel, PowerPoint) or Adobe PDF 
attachment. Although this email has been scanned for threats, please think before opening 

attachments from unrecognised senders. 

Rhybudd: Mae’r e-bost hwn yn cynnwys atodiad Microsoft Office (Word, Excel, PowerPoint) neu 
PDF Adobe. Er bod yr e-bost hwn wedi’i sganio ar gyfer unrhyw fygythiadau, meddyliwch cyn agor 

atodiadau gan anfonwyr nad ydych yn eu hadnabod. *** 

  

 EXTERNAL: This email originated from outside Cardiff Council, take care when 
clicking links.  
 ALLANOL: Daw'r e-bost hwn o'r tu allan i Gyngor Caerdydd, cymerwch ofal wrth 
glicio ar ddolenni.   

 
  
To whom it may concern,   
 
Please find attached representations made by South Wales Police in respect of the application for a new premises 
licence at The Mood Lounge, City Road, Cardiff.   
 
South Wales Police object to the grant of the application as applied for under the following licensing objectives, 
namely,   
 
The Prevention of Crime and Disorder. 
 
The Prevention of Public Nuisance. 
 
The Protection of Children from Harm. 
 
However, should the applicant confirm their agreement in writing with the proposed conditions from South Wales 
Police, then any objection made to the grant of the application will be withdrawn.   
 
Yours sincerely,   
 
 

 

  Rob Gunstone    
Cwnstabl yr Heddlu 3487 / Police Constable 3487.  
Adran Drwyddedu / Licensing Department 
 
Heddlu De Cymru / South Wales Police 
URS y Dwyrain / Eastern BCU 

Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



1

Barker, Kirstie

From: Mood Lounge 
Sent: 15 September 2021 18:27
To:
Cc: Licensing (Licensing Regulatory)  / Trwyddedu (Rheoleiddio Trwyddedu)
Subject: Re: Police Representations-Mood Lounge 119a-121 City Road. Cardiff.

 EXTERNAL: This email originated from outside Cardiff Council, take care when 
clicking links.  
 ALLANOL: Daw'r e-bost hwn o'r tu allan i Gyngor Caerdydd, cymerwch ofal wrth 
glicio ar ddolenni.   

 
  
Hi There, 
I can confirm that I happy to do all your enquiries has been Mentioned   on your latter. 
 Kind regards  
Mood lounge LTD 
Director 
Khaled Alramadan 
 
On Tue, 14 Sep 2021 at 08:45,  wrote: 

To whom it may concern,   

  

Please find attached representations made by South Wales Police in respect of the application for a new 
premises licence at The Mood Lounge, City Road, Cardiff.   

  

South Wales Police object to the grant of the application as applied for under the following licensing 
objectives, namely,   

  

The Prevention of Crime and Disorder. 

  

The Prevention of Public Nuisance. 

  

The Protection of Children from Harm. 

  

However, should the applicant confirm their agreement in writing with the proposed conditions from South 
Wales Police, then any objection made to the grant of the application will be withdrawn.   

  

Page 17



 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX D 
Other Persons Representation 

 
 

 

Page 18



1

Licensing (Licensing Regulatory)  / Trwyddedu (Rheoleiddio Trwyddedu)

From:
Sent: 06 September 2021 10:53
To: Licensing (Licensing Regulatory)  / Trwyddedu (Rheoleiddio Trwyddedu)
Subject: Fw: [Scan] 2021-09-06 10:49
Attachments: 2021-09-06 10-49.pdf

*** Warning: This email contains a Microsoft Office (Word, Excel, PowerPoint) or Adobe PDF 
attachment. Although this email has been scanned for threats, please think before opening 

attachments from unrecognised senders. 
Rhybudd: Mae’r e-bost hwn yn cynnwys atodiad Microsoft Office (Word, Excel, PowerPoint) neu 

PDF Adobe. Er bod yr e-bost hwn wedi’i sganio ar gyfer unrhyw fygythiadau, meddyliwch cyn agor 
atodiadau gan anfonwyr nad ydych yn eu hadnabod. *** 

  

 EXTERNAL: This email originated from outside Cardiff Council, take care when 
clicking links.  
 ALLANOL: Daw'r e-bost hwn o'r tu allan i Gyngor Caerdydd, cymerwch ofal wrth 
glicio ar ddolenni.   

 
  
 
Dear Sir / Madam 
 
Please see attached form with concerns relating to residential units 
on city road and Russell street due to location of applicants building. 
 
Kind regards, 
 

 

Page 19



Page 20


	Agenda
	2 Application for a Grant of a Premises Licence - Mood Lounge, City Road
	APPENDIX A - Site Map & Plan.pdf
	Title
	Mood Lounge Plan.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model







